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1              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Pursuant to Section

2 9-201 Sub C of the Public Utilities Act and

3 Section 200.850 of the Commission's administrative

4 rules, I now convene oral argument before the

5 Illinois Commerce Commission in Docket No. 12-0511

6 and 12-0512 consolidated.

7                   This is North Shore Gas Company

8 and the Peoples Gas, Light & Coke Company's

9 proposed general increase of natural gas rates.

10 With me in Chicago are Commissioner McCabe, Acting

11 Commissioner Del Valle and Acting Commissioner

12 Maye.  With us in Springfield is Commissioner

13 Colgan.  I'm Chairman Scott.

14                   As the Commission noticed to the

15 parties, we have two topics for oral argument

16 today and they are as follows:  First, Accelerated

17 Main Replacement Program projects including both

18 Section 8-102 Investigation and Adjustments and,

19 second, the Legacy Sewer Lateral Cross Bore

20 Program.

21                   Oral argument in this case was

22 noticed for today, May 29th at 10:30 a.m. and all
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1 participants should have received both the notice

2 and a schedule for today's oral argument.  As

3 stated in our notice, in addition to the topics

4 already identified, the parties should also be

5 prepared to answer any questions regarding the

6 record or the pertinent law.

7                   There are four parties

8 participating in today's arguments.  The parties

9 may divide their allotted time between initial

10 argument and rebuttal so please let us know before

11 you begin if you plan to reserve any time for

12 rebuttal.

13                   In terms of the order of

14 presentation as indicated in the agenda, we will

15 start with North Shore and Peoples, followed with

16 the staff of the Illinois Commerce Commission and

17 then the Citizens Utility Board and City of

18 Chicago and finish with the Office of the Attorney

19 General.  Then we will use the same order for

20 rebuttal with North Shore and Peoples also having

21 the opportunity for surrebuttal.

22                   We have timely received exhibits
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1 from the Office of the Attorney General as well as

2 Peoples for use in today's oral arguments.  So

3 these items will be the only exhibits we will

4 allow for today.  Timekeeper Jeff to my right will

5 be monitoring the time in Chicago so you should be

6 cognizant of your time usage and we will attempt

7 to give the presenter a warning, one minute before

8 your time is expired, but those of you who

9 practice in front of us know that doesn't always

10 happen so be cognizant of the time that is on the

11 clock and let us know again if you're planning on

12 reserving any time for rebuttal.

13                   To keep things on schedule, your

14 time allotment is inclusive of Commission

15 questions and any related answers.  So please do

16 be judicious with your time.

17                   Turning now to oral argument.

18 First we'll hear from North Shore and Peoples,

19 their attorney Carla Scarsella.  Ms. Scarsella,

20 you will have 20 minutes for both your initial

21 presentation and rebuttal.  Would you like to

22 reserve any time.
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1              MS. SCARSELLA:  Yes, Mr. Chairman.

2 Five minutes for rebuttal and surrebuttal.

3              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Thank

4 you and you're free to begin whenever you'd like.

5              MS. SCARSELLA:  Mr. Chairman and

6 Commissioners, my name is Carla Scarsella and I'm

7 representing Peoples Gas and North Shore in this

8 proceeding.  As I stated, I'd like to reserve five

9 minutes for rebuttal.

10                   Peoples Gas and North Shore

11 strongly recommend that the Commission adopt the

12 proposed order's findings that reject the staff

13 and intervener adjustments related to the

14 Accelerated Main Replacement Program, or AMRP, and

15 the Legacy Sewer Lateral Cross Bore Program as

16 they are unsupported by the record and contrary to

17 the law.

18                   The Commission should also adopt

19 the proposed order's findings rejecting staff's

20 Section 8-102 investigation into AMRP.  I'll first

21 address AMRP and then the Cross Bore Program.

22                   Before discussing the proposed
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1 adjustments and investigation, it is important to

2 discuss the history of the Main Replacement

3 Program and the key elements of AMRP.  In its

4 order in the Peoples rate case from 2009, the

5 Commission approved Rider ICR.  It is an

6 infrastructure cost recovery mechanism that

7 allowed Peoples Gas to accelerate its program to

8 replace existing cast iron and ductile iron mains.

9 Peoples Gas' original Main Replacement Program

10 began in 1981 and was set to conclude in 2050.

11 Acceleration of the program allowed Peoples Gas to

12 bring the programs benefits sooner to its

13 customers.

14                   These benefits include increased

15 safety and reliability, cost savings, job

16 creation, reduced environmental impacts and

17 increased functionalities with the higher pressure

18 system that would allow customers to use more

19 energy efficient equipment.  In that 2009 rate

20 case order, the Commission also found that AMRP is

21 a 20-year program with a five-year ramp up period

22 and a two-year ramp down period.



9

1                   AMRP consists of four main

2 system upgrade goals:  Retiring 1,870 miles of old

3 main, upgrading approximately 300,000 service

4 pipes, relocating gas meters from inside to

5 outside customer's facilities and upgrading the

6 gas distribution system from a low pressure to a

7 medium pressure system.  Following over a year of

8 detailed planning in 2010, AMRP construction began

9 in May of 2011.  If you refer to Oral Argument

10 Exhibit No. 3, adding the 2011 and 2009 -- or 2012

11 columns together which represent the actual work

12 for the first 20 months of construction, Peoples

13 Gas completed a substantial amount of work

14 including installing 287 miles of new main and

15 retiring 142 miles of old main.

16                   In 2012, in each category of

17 work except for new main installed, Peoples Gas

18 surpassed the work completed in 2011 and in three

19 instances doubled that work.  In fact, in 2012,

20 more main was retired than in the last three

21 calendar years.  For 2013, Peoples Gas will

22 continue this pace.  To be able to meet the
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1 construction demands of the program, AMRP created

2 500 highly skilled jobs and People Gas hired an

3 additional 120 union workers to increase its

4 staff.

5                   In fact, Peoples Gas partnered

6 with the Utility Workers Union of America and the

7 City Colleges of Chicago to create a first class

8 apprenticeship program to provide the needed

9 training for these workers.  The first class of

10 students to enroll in 2012 consisted entirely of

11 US military veterans.  Despite this considerable

12 progress made, staff is proposing a total

13 reduction of $218.5 million to Peoples Gas' gross

14 plant and rate case.  This reduction is comprised

15 of two separate adjustments.

16                   The first reduces gross plant by

17 $95.7 million for 2012 AMRP projects and the

18 second reduces gross plant by $122.8 million for

19 2013 AMRP projects.  The proposed order correctly

20 rejects these adjustments.  To be included in rate

21 base, the cost of an asset must be prudently

22 incurred, reasonable in amounts, and the asset
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1 must be used and useful in providing utility

2 service.

3                   Excluding the cost of removal,

4 which are not includable in rate base budgeted

5 2012 expenditures were $212.6 million for 2012

6 AMRP projects.  The actual expenditures for those

7 same projects were $210 million.  Thus, actual

8 expenditures were in line with Peoples Gas'

9 forecast for the 2012 year.  Staff agrees that the

10 amounts -- that the 2012 amount included in rate

11 base is reflective of the work actually completed

12 in 2012.  Referring to oral argument at 3 again,

13 Exhibit 3, staff also, in fact, agrees, for

14 example, that for 2012 132 miles of new main were

15 installed, 13,289 new service pipes were

16 installed, 28,160 meter sets were installed and

17 3.5 miles of high pressure main were installed.

18 Furthermore, staff agrees that these facilities

19 are used and useful in providing utility service.

20              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Can I stop you for

21 a second?

22              MS. SCARSELLA:  Yes.
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1              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  This is really kind

2 of the crux of where we're at.  All the numbers

3 that you gave are not what the projections were

4 for, correct?  So, I mean, the money that was

5 spent was what was projected to be spent, but the

6 amount that was installed was quite a bit less

7 than what was planned to be installed during that

8 period?

9              MS. SCARSELLA:  Correct,

10 Mr. Chairman.  The amount of work had to be

11 revised right after the filing of the case that

12 initiated this proceeding due to four main

13 unforeseen circumstances.  Peoples Gas had to

14 react to that otherwise the budget would have been

15 increased to $262 million and that would have been

16 not inappropriate.

17              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Let me ask about

18 that because that is kind of where I'm going to

19 look for a little help here where we draw this

20 line of what is prudent and reasonable because you

21 talked about the extensive planning period, but

22 the things we're talking about here that what
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1 you're calling the unforeseen circumstances are

2 things like time getting permits and what was in

3 the subsurface and things that just at first blush

4 might seem like they would be things that you

5 would either figure out during the planning period

6 or should have been reasonably anticipated going

7 forward.  So where is that line?  We're missing

8 things like that or not anticipating all those

9 things becomes imprudent then.

10              MS. SCARSELLA:  Absolutely.  First,

11 I would respectfully disagree on one point.

12              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

13              MS. SCARSELLA:  There were permit

14 and coordination issues that occurred in 2011 and

15 actually those issues were raised in the utilities

16 2011 rate cases.  Those issues were resolved in

17 2011 and did not occur again in 2012.  So that is

18 not a factor about the work that had to be

19 revised, the work plan that had to be revised.

20                   As for the unforeseen costs,

21 those are four primarily categories of costs.  One

22 was associated with CDOT, Chicago Department of
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1 Transportation, regulations that were issued in

2 July of 2012.  Up until that point, Peoples Gas

3 had been working with the city on the proposed

4 regulations, but when they were finally issued in

5 July of 2012 they included new sections that

6 increased the cost of obtaining permits and

7 completing work associated with AMRP.

8                   Peoples Gas had asked for a

9 six-month delay in imposing those regulations so

10 they can understand further what those -- what

11 those entailed and how they would affect AMRP.

12 Second -- the second group of costs associated

13 were when Peoples Gas went to excavate and went to

14 dig for certain projects they encountered rock and

15 that increased the cost and then the city also

16 required, which it hadn't done in the past, that

17 deep shoring permits be required and that added to

18 the cost of the projects.  And, finally, you know,

19 Peoples Gas used as-built documents to let it know

20 where other utilities had their lines and their

21 facilities underground and as construction

22 progressed it turned out that what was actually in
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1 the ground did not match those as-built documents.

2                   So, you know, plans had to be

3 revised and permits had to be obtained again to

4 adapt to that new work and that all contributed to

5 the cost of increasing the cost of the project

6 plan for the 2012 year.

7              COMMISSIONER MCCABE:  Does the

8 schedule in Exhibit 4 reflect all those

9 adjustments through the remaining years of the

10 program?

11              MS. SCARSELLA:  Well, no, I don't

12 believe it does, Commissioner, but what Exhibit 4

13 does as you can tell -- I know it's pretty small

14 print, but it front loads the project in the first

15 ten years.  So much of the work is front loaded in

16 the first ten years and then it is set to decrease

17 with extra time in the end.

18                   So it provides the flexibility

19 and the discretion that allows Peoples Gas to --

20 when it encounters a situation like this to be

21 able to have the time to do the actual work.

22              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  How much of the
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1 cost increase was attributable to the new CDOT

2 regulations, the July 2012 regulations, if you

3 know?  I'm sure it's in your --

4              MS. SCARSELLA:  I don't know

5 offhand.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  That's okay.

7              MS. SCARSELLA:  It's in -- it's in

8 Mr. Hayes' supplemental direct testimony as his

9 Attachment One.

10              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thanks.

11              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Did you say

12 you asked the city to postpone implementation of

13 those regulations by six months and they declined?

14 Is that what happened?

15              MS. SCARSELLA:  Well, there is no

16 subsequent letter in the record.  The request was

17 made to postpone implementation of those CDOT

18 regulations until January of 2013.  So not all the

19 regulations became effective in July because we're

20 working -- Peoples Gas is working with the city to

21 understand the new sections that made it into the

22 regulations.



17

1              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  So they did

2 agree to postpone it for six months?

3              MS. SCARSELLA:  Yes, Commissioner.

4 Based on the evidence in the record, the used and

5 useful status of these facilities are agreed.  As

6 such, staff's adjustment of the cost -- let me

7 start again.

8                   There is no evidence that these

9 costs were excessive or imprudent.  The used and

10 useful status of the 2012 projects are agreed.  As

11 such, staff's adjustment is contrary to the record

12 and the law.  The law does not permit disallowance

13 with such a record and staff has not cited any

14 past Commission order that supports such a

15 disallowance.

16                   I would also ask the Commission

17 to consider the public policy that results from

18 approving staff's adjustment.  Staff is asking the

19 Commission to deny recovery of the actual plant

20 costs that were prudently incurred, reasonable in

21 amount in the plant that is serving customers

22 including enhancing the safety of the distribution
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1 system.  This is a policy that the Commission

2 should reject.

3                   Staff's adjustment related to

4 2013 AMRP projects is equally without merit.

5 Peoples Gas has developed a detailed AMRP

6 construction schedule and a 20-year deployment

7 plan that is based on five-year rolling periods.

8 Peoples Gas is ramping up construction for AMRP

9 and can appropriately forecast and manage costs

10 associated with the project.  Furthermore, even if

11 an adjustment were warranted, which it is not,

12 staff's adjustments are seriously flawed and are

13 based on mistaken or outdated information and do

14 not include key costs such as costs associated

15 with design, engineering and project and

16 construction management.

17                   Furthermore, the AG's adjustment

18 regarding construction work in progress should

19 also be rejected.  Peoples Gas has been embarking

20 on AMRP, a capital intensive program that will

21 necessarily require large amounts of costs to move

22 in and out of CWIP as mains are gassed and placed
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1 into service.  Also, monthly AMRP related projects

2 in CWIP have been steadily decreasing as Peoples

3 Gas moves to the zonal approach of implementing

4 AMRP.

5                   Finally, and most importantly,

6 Peoples Gas has presented evidence that the

7 amounts in CWIP related to AMRP projects will be

8 placed into service in 2013 or early 2014.

9              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Counsel, I do

10 have a question at this point.  Based on not just

11 your oral argument today, but also the record it

12 does appear that even with the -- based on the

13 cost productions that the plan is behind schedule.

14 I'm just wondering at this point does it appear

15 that meeting a 2030 deadline is feasible?

16              MS. SCARSELLA:  I respectfully

17 disagree, Commissioner.  If you look at Oral

18 Argument Exhibit No. 2 and it shows the main --

19 old main retired in the last five calendar years,

20 2009 to 2012, you will see that if you take the

21 work remaining at 2012 -- December 31st, 2010, and

22 average it over the remaining 19 years of the
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1 program, Peoples Gas either meets or exceeds the

2 average to deploy the program.

3                   And, again, I'd like to remind

4 the Commission that the way this construction

5 schedule is progress -- work is front ended.  So

6 more work is to be completed in the first ten

7 years and slowly, you know, decreased over the

8 remaining eight years of the program.  So even if

9 for some reason -- you know, I respectfully

10 disagree that we're behind, but even if for some

11 reason projects needed to be delayed there is

12 ample time left remaining for it to be completed

13 by 2030.

14              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Well, when I say

15 behind, I mean, overall in the forecast of

16 schedules.  I mean, based on what the projection

17 was what would have been done each year to where

18 we are now, you still wouldn't agree?

19              MS. SCARSELLA:  I do not,

20 Commissioner.  You know, this is a 20-year

21 project.  There are times when projects are going

22 to span the course of two years as opposed to
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1 being completed in one year and Peoples Gas needs

2 the discretion and flexibility to be able to react

3 on -- to proceed on costs that are outside its

4 control and should a project need to be delayed it

5 needs to be flexible and complete other projects

6 before -- before completing what they originally

7 thought would be done and that is how the 20-year

8 program has been developed.  And that's what was

9 set forth in the plan that was approved by -- that

10 was associated with Rider ICR and approved in the

11 2009 rate case.

12              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Thanks.

13              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I just wanted to

14 alert you to the time.

15              MS. SCARSELLA:  Yes.  Briefly, the

16 proposed 8-102 investigation also should be

17 rejected.  Peoples Gas has completed a significant

18 amount of work during the first 20 months of

19 construction and as the AMRP plant calls for

20 Peoples Gas is ramping up activities.  Peoples Gas

21 has aggressively scheduled work for the first

22 years of AMRP in order for the program to gain the
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1 appropriate momentum in the years when the program

2 will hit its peak replacement period.  Peoples Gas

3 has also demonstrated that it can plan and manage

4 AMRP.  For example, the significant work that was

5 accomplished in 2012 when Peoples Gas had to react

6 to rising costs due to unforeseen circumstances

7 that were not in its control.

8                   In conclusion, Peoples Gas has

9 demonstrated that it has appropriately planned for

10 and can manage AMRP.  Just 20 months into

11 construction, Peoples Gas has retired 142 miles of

12 old main, or 7.6 percent of the total main to be

13 retired.  Peoples Gas has been investing hundreds

14 of millions of dollars in 2012 and 2013 in AMRP

15 even after the appellate court reversed the

16 approval of Rider ICR.

17              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Can I ask you about

18 the investigation really quickly, and I apologize

19 for this, but there is discussion in all of the

20 materials about whether or not an investigation

21 would impede Peoples in meeting their timeline.

22 Just so I've got it clear on what Peoples'
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1 position is on that, would that in your opinion

2 impede --

3              MS. SCARSELLA:  It would.  It's

4 going to draw resources off the AMRP program to be

5 able to work with the auditor who is brought in to

6 investigate the program and that is why we

7 slightly disagree with staff's estimate of the

8 investigation.  Staff I believe says it is going

9 to cost $2.5 million.  We believe it is going to

10 actually cost $3.5 million when you factor in the

11 ancillary costs associated with the work -- the

12 investigator's work that he'll or the auditor's

13 work and the resources that Peoples Gas will have

14 to use and that will be diverted from AMRP.

15              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  To follow up on

16 the Chairman's question.  If the Commission does

17 not order an investigation, what mechanisms are

18 then in place for the Commission to be able to

19 closely monitor the progress of the AMRP project?

20              MS. SCARSELLA:  Unfortunately, when

21 Rider ICR was rejected, a lot of the reporting and

22 auditing functions disappeared with it, but, you
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1 know, during this case and in the 2011 case

2 Peoples Gas has been open with the project, has

3 answered a multitude of discovery throughout the

4 case.  You know, we've answered all questions and

5 even would be willing to meet with staff to

6 discuss it, but unfortunately the structure of ICR

7 disappeared when that rider got reversed.

8              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Ms. Scarsella,

9 you mentioned a couple times this is a 20-year

10 project.  There are some discussions in the record

11 as to whether or not the company has a 20-year

12 commitment to this project.  Can you respond to

13 that?

14              MS. SCARSELLA:  Absolutely,

15 Commissioner.  You know, Peoples Gas, as I said,

16 has continued to invest in AMRP because they

17 believe in it.  The Rider ICR was reversed in

18 September of 2011.  Peoples Gas moved forward with

19 AMRP projects in 2012 and is moving forward with

20 the AMRP projects in 2013.

21                   However, proving adjustments as

22 suggested by staff and the AG jeopardizes that
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1 investment because, you know, Peoples Gas also has

2 other investments it needs to make and there is

3 limited capital available to it.  So while it

4 might not be a direct, it might not happen next

5 year or the year after, but eventually it needs to

6 recover the costs that it invests into this

7 system.  I'm out of time.

8              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.  When we

9 get back to time for rebuttal, I'll give you a

10 couple of minutes and adjust everybody else's time

11 accordingly then.

12              MS. SCARSELLA:  Thank you.

13              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.  Next

14 we'll hear from John Feeley representing staff of

15 the Illinois Commerce Commission.  Mr. Feeley,

16 you'll have 15 minutes.  Would you like to reserve

17 any time?

18              MR. FEELEY:  Yes, I'd like to

19 reserve three minutes for rebuttal.

20              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.  Go right

21 ahead, sir.

22              MR. FEELEY:  Good morning, Chairman,
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1 Commissioners.  My name is John Feeley.  I

2 represent the staff.  I will address the

3 Accelerated Main Replacement Program, or AMRP, and

4 the Legacy Sewer Lateral Cross Bore issues.  If

5 you have any questions on any other issues, my

6 co-counsel Angelique Palmer and I will do our best

7 to answer your questions.

8                   Chairman and Commissioners, my

9 goal today is to explain to you why you should

10 initiate a Section 8-102 investigation of Peoples

11 AMRP.  The proposed order rejects staff witness

12 Buxton's recommendation, but staff respectfully

13 disagrees with the proposed order.  This is the

14 second time that staff has made this

15 recommendation to the Commission, but hopefully

16 it's not the second time that it is rejected.

17                   Otherwise, staff fears that once

18 you realize that an investigation is necessary, it

19 is going to be too late to put the company on the

20 right track for its AMRP.  Since the last time you

21 considered a similar recommendation by staff, the

22 company has poorly planned, designed and executed
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1 its AMRP.  Without oversight -- without the

2 oversight that Mr. Buxton recommends, the

3 company's AMRP is just going to continue on the

4 wrong track.

5                   Staff supports AMRP just like

6 the Commission has in the past, but staff does not

7 support Peoples Gas completing only half the

8 amount of work it plans and budgets for and with

9 regard to the work that it does complete

10 completing it at twice the cost.  Staff does not

11 support the utility that it is incapable of

12 forecasting the cost to complete a project.  While

13 the company argues that it needs a complete year

14 of construction costs for 2011 and '12 in order to

15 estimate the complete cost for AMRP, that makes

16 little sense.

17                   Back in 1981, Peoples Gas began

18 replacing cast iron and ductile iron mains.  That

19 is over 30 years ago, but Peoples claims it needs

20 another two years of experience to estimate the

21 costs.  They're just providing excuses.  They

22 claim to have a 20-year plan, but the plan
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1 contains insufficient detail.

2                   First, the plan does not have a

3 budget.  Second, the plan doesn't even mention

4 costs.  According to the company's own witnesses,

5 senior management tells Peoples staff how much

6 money can be spent each year on AMRP.  Based upon

7 that information, employees then determine which

8 mains should be replaced first and how many to

9 replace.  That is not long-term planning.  With

10 this type of plan or with that type of plan, the

11 Commission cannot measure the company's efficiency

12 and effectiveness in carrying out the plan.  The

13 Commission will be unable to determine if there

14 are cost overruns because there are no cost

15 estimates in the plan.

16              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Can I just ask

17 a question here?

18              MR. FEELEY:  Sure.

19              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Staff clearly

20 is calling for this investigation and, you know,

21 it's called an audit or an investigation and if

22 there is conclusive evidence that this plan has
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1 not been created -- not only is it not being

2 implemented, it hasn't even been created.  What

3 good is an investigation?  What are we going to

4 get out of that other than there is no plan and

5 nothing is being done?  I mean, does the

6 investigation -- is there a goal that it would

7 create a plan and create a budget with timelines

8 in it?

9              MR. FEELEY:  Staff witness Buxton in

10 his testimony goes over in a lot of detail about

11 what work would be done in two different phases of

12 the investigation and it is helping the company --

13 it is really helping the company get this plan on

14 track.  So it's not just pointing to past errors,

15 it's establishing a plan and then seeing if

16 they're complying with it, but Mr. Buxton talks

17 about that in detail in his testimony.  That is in

18 his rebuttal.

19                   Finally, because this was

20 addressed to counsel for the company, but Peoples

21 they don't have a commitment to their plan.  The

22 commitment is dependant upon cost recovery.  The
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1 company has argued that the investigation is too

2 expensive.  Staff recognizes that the

3 investigation would be expensive, but it's not too

4 expensive.  We also recognize that it is difficult

5 to estimate the costs for such an investigation,

6 but staff witness Buxton's best estimate is that

7 it would be approximately $2.5 million.  You need

8 to look at that cost in the right context.  Keep

9 in mind that in this case, Peoples and North Shore

10 are seeking over $5.5 million in rate case

11 expenses from ratepayers.

12                   Rate case expense is a very

13 limited life of benefit.  An AMRP investigation

14 doesn't have a limited benefit like that.  The

15 cost for the AMRP investigation will provide

16 benefits for years to come.  They will occur over

17 the life of the AMRP.  Also at $2.5 million the

18 estimated cost is roughly just one percent of the

19 2013 AMRP construction budget.  Now, with respect

20 to AMRP --

21              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Can I interrupt

22 you, Mr. Feeley?
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1              MR. FEELEY:  Sure.

2              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Sorry to interrupt

3 you, but going back to the investigation itself.

4 In addition to the costs, do you have any concerns

5 of the time it takes to do that?  I mean, if we're

6 saying that one of the main problems here is

7 things aren't moving fast enough, doesn't the

8 investigation also serve to help slow down that

9 timetable a little bit more?  I realize you're

10 talking about then there is a plan to try to ramp

11 it up, but don't you end up losing a couple more

12 years by doing an investigation?

13              MR. FEELEY:  Actually, I think

14 you're in the end.  It's staff's position you're

15 going to save time, but the plan there -- they

16 don't have really a plan.  They need direction and

17 staff wants to give them direction.  They want to

18 get them on track to complete this plan.

19              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  But they're still

20 doing replacements and while we can argue about

21 whether it is fast enough or -- they're still

22 going on right now, but would that get slowed up
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1 at all by doing an investigation even it is less

2 than people want it to be?

3              MR. FEELEY:  How can you -- how can

4 you judge how effective or efficient they are

5 because they don't have costs in their plan?  They

6 don't have budgets.  It's just whatever their

7 management says you have this much money to spend

8 this year on the plan, go out and do it and

9 looking back you can't tell if they're being

10 efficient.

11              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  But staff isn't

12 arguing that what they have done, the work that

13 they have done, isn't in furtherance of the

14 mission of the replacement.  You're not arguing

15 what they have done isn't either well-done work or

16 in furtherance of the mission of doing the

17 replacements in the first place, right?

18              MR. FEELEY:  They have done half of

19 what they projected they would do.

20              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Right.  But you're

21 not arguing with the actual work on what they have

22 done?
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1              MR. FEELEY:  We do take issue with

2 costs.  Half the work for twice the cost.  You

3 know, that's the prudence and reasonable that

4 we --

5              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I understand that.

6 I'm not asking about the costs.

7              MR. FEELEY:  They are moving

8 forward, but it's with -- they need help and we're

9 trying -- staff is trying to give them help.

10              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Okay.

11              MR. FEELEY:  Now, with respect to

12 AMRP, staff witness Seagle proposed an adjustment

13 to remove approximately $95.7 million in 2012

14 costs and $122.8 million in 2013 cost.  He

15 testified that -- I've already covered this, but

16 they've done half the amount of work at twice the

17 cost.

18              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  But, Mr. Feeley,

19 based on the record it appears that staff actually

20 has no evidence that these funds were spent in

21 furtherance of construction work that was

22 necessary.  So whereas you're saying they may not
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1 have completed -- they've only completed half, all

2 of the funds that were actually spent were on

3 construction -- was construction work that was

4 necessary to complete this project?

5              MR. FEELEY:  Yeah, but it wasn't a

6 reasonable amount.  Half the amount of work at

7 twice the cost.  That's not reasonable.  That's

8 why staff has its adjustment.

9              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  And what would

10 this investigation entail in a way?  I know you're

11 stating that this investigation will put them on

12 the right back and drive them in the necessary

13 direction, but what will this investigation entail

14 so that it doesn't impede at the end of the day so

15 there is an AMRP project completed in 20 years?

16              MR. FEELEY:  Well, one of the

17 results is you're going to have a plan and you're

18 going to be able to look back and see if the

19 company is meeting that plan.

20                   Right now, you know, in three

21 years from now if you do nothing today and you go

22 back, well, let's see what they've done.  You
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1 don't have any benchmarks.  You don't have

2 anything to compare them to see if they're meeting

3 that.  So that is one of the points of the

4 investigation.  Again, it's two phases and it --

5 Mr. Buxton goes over it in a lot of detail in his

6 testimony.

7              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Can I ask you about

8 the reductions for a moment?

9              MR. FEELEY:  Sure.

10              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  So it looked to me

11 that the reductions are based on this amount of

12 work was going to be done, half of that work was

13 done, therefore, the reductions are roughly half.

14 Was there any effort to go deeper into that to

15 say, for example, that they should have known

16 about the rock, for example, that they would hit

17 in the subsurface and those costs are X and,

18 therefore, we're reducing that or are we just kind

19 of taking the whole and reducing it by half?

20              MR. FEELEY:  No, it's more than

21 taking the whole and cutting it in half.  Mr. --

22 staff witness Seagle has an exhibit or schedule
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1 attached to his testimony.  He looked at certain

2 costs that the company tracked and he analyzed

3 those to come up with his proposed adjustments.

4 He looked at the number of mains installed, the

5 miles of mains that they gassed, the gas service

6 installed, the meters installed and the miles of

7 old main removed.

8                   Now, he does admit in his

9 rebuttal testimony that the company pointed out

10 one cost category that he didn't consider, but he

11 should have and he took that into his account in

12 his rebuttal.  There is some cost categories that

13 the company says he should have also considered

14 these, but in his testimony and in our briefs he

15 pointed out, well, those don't have anything to do

16 with whether the main is functioning.  So back to

17 your question it's more than just cutting it in

18 half.

19              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  But go back to the

20 question of the cost, and I realize you don't

21 agree with all these, but the costs that

22 Ms. Scarsella identified talking about the
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1 unforeseen new regulations from the city, for

2 example, or the shore -- the cost involved with

3 the deep shoring or the subsurface materials.  I

4 mean, that is different than just looking at the

5 number of mains and things like that.  I mean,

6 that's --

7              MR. FEELEY:  Yeah.  And I think it's

8 either Mr. Buxton or Mr. Seagle.  You know,

9 Peoples has been operating in the city for a long

10 time and they are saying these things were

11 unforeseen that there is rocks in the ground and,

12 you know, they may not have foreseen that, but

13 that was foreseeable.

14                   You know, so these costs, these

15 unforeseeable things, staff would disagree with

16 them.  You know, quickly with respect to the cross

17 bore issue.  Staff presented a witness Darin Burk

18 who is the manager of the Commission's pipeline

19 safety section.  He testified and you'll see in

20 his testimony and his brief that they needed to

21 have procedures in place that would have allowed

22 him to confirm that there wasn't -- that there was



38

1 space between a sewer utility and a gas utility

2 and they failed in that area.  So -- let's see.

3              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  These are

4 federal standards that they're supposed to be in

5 compliance with and staff is saying that they're

6 not in compliance with that?

7              MR. FEELEY:  They talked about,

8 well, we train our people once we determine this

9 is going on.  We work with them.  They need to

10 establish that they had procedures and manuals in

11 place that would identify that they were

12 confirming that they were maintaining a space

13 between their gas utility and the sewer utility

14 and you're correct.  They are federal standards.

15 One is -- comes from the Code of Federal

16 Regulation and the others are some -- the Gas

17 Piping Technology Committee Guide For Gas

18 Transmission and Distribution Piping Systems.

19                   So before my time is up I'd like

20 to save some time for rebuttal, but in conclusion

21 you need to reject the proposed order's

22 conclusions regarding the Section 8-102
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1 investigation.  You know, again, staff is fearful

2 that if it gets rejected now and the Commission

3 realizes that it is necessary it's going to be too

4 late.  So now is the time to act on that.  In

5 addition, you should reject the proposed order's

6 conclusions on the AMRP adjustment proposed by

7 staff and the Legacy Sewer Lateral Cross Bore

8 adjustment.

9              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  And it's your

10 contention that staff has gone into sufficient

11 detail as to what the outcome of the investigation

12 should be so as to correct what they're claiming

13 to be the fault of the plan?

14              MR. FEELEY:  Yes.  In Mr. Buxton's

15 testimony, he lays out a very clear plan for the

16 two phases of the 8-102 investigation.

17              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thanks.  I'll give

18 you a minute at the end as well.

19              MR. FEELEY:  Thank you.

20              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Next, we'll hear

21 from the Citizens Utility Board and the City of

22 Chicago through their attorneys Christie Hicks and
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1 Conrad Reddick.  Ms. Hicks, Mr. Reddick, you'll

2 have 15 minutes.  I'll ask if you'd like to

3 reserve any time?

4              MR. REDDICK:  We would like to

5 reserve anything that is left.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Go

7 ahead, sir.

8              MR. REDDICK:  Good morning,

9 Mr. Chairman and Commissioners.  My name is Conrad

10 Reddick and I'm appearing on behalf of CUB,

11 Citizens Utility Board, and the City of Chicago.

12 This morning I will review the reasons CUB/City

13 supports and the Commission should adopt staff's

14 conclusion that the Commission's regulatory

15 oversight responsibilities require an independent

16 examination of the design, planning and execution

17 of PGL's Accelerated Main Replacement Program.

18                   Specifically, I will discuss the

19 pipe conditions that make accelerated main

20 replacement necessary, the current conditions that

21 prompted staff's proposal and the future

22 performance uncertainties that require at the very
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1 least an independent second opinion.

2                   The record contains clear

3 descriptions of the current state of PGL's mains

4 servicing Chicago from the mouths of the utilities

5 own witnesses.  Mr. Phillip Hayes is an engineer

6 and director of project management for the

7 Integrys affiliates supporting PGL's AMRP.  In his

8 testimony, Mr. Hayes confirms alarming specifics

9 about the current state of PGL's cast iron and

10 ductile iron mains in Chicago which comprise

11 almost one-half of its system.  According to

12 Mr. Hayes, most of PGL's iron mains were installed

13 from the 1860's through the 1960's.  Thus, the

14 youngest of these pipes have been in the ground

15 for almost half a century.

16                   Iron pipes deteriorate over time

17 as the pipe walls are compromised by corrosion.

18 Mr. Hayes described the resulting deterioration.

19 He said, quote, pipe walls are soft and thin, end

20 quote.  The freezing, thawing and heat of

21 Chicago's seasons weakens pipes and pipe joints.

22 Weakened pipes and joints may leak or rupture
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1 entirely possibly causing fires or explosions.

2 That, according to PGL, is what lies beneath

3 Chicago today.  The dangers to the city's

4 residents and visitors and to reliable service are

5 obvious.  Unsurprisingly, Mr. Hayes said he can

6 understand the city's public safety concerns.

7                   The urgency to replace aging

8 mains did not arise suddenly.  Rather, the

9 undisputed need for accelerated replacement

10 confirms that gradual replacement of mains as they

11 aged has not been PGL's practice.  PGL began this

12 effort to replace iron mains in 1981.  As

13 Mr. Feeley recounted, after almost 30 years PGL

14 had replaced less than half of the vulnerable

15 mains they identified.

16                   In 2009, the Commission accepted

17 PGL's proposal for its AMRP finding the matter --

18 finding that system improvement was a matter of

19 public interest, more so than just the company's

20 proposal.  Since then, however, PGL's main

21 replacement activity has been uneven with only

22 about 20 miles of mains replaced in 2009 and 2010,
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1 installed replacements increasing to 155 miles in

2 2011, but declining by 15 percent in 2012.  PGL's

3 planned installations of new mains have

4 consistently exceeded the actuals it has

5 accomplished.

6                   In each year, moreover, the

7 actual removal of compromised mains from service

8 lags installations as its customers must first be

9 moved to the new pipes before the old pipes can be

10 depressured and taken out of surface.  The future

11 implications of PGL's past inability to meet

12 planned performance targets are uncertain, but

13 concerning.

14                   PGL's corporate policies,

15 however, are more troubling than its operational

16 missteps.  Today at the beginning of AMRP PGL has

17 already curtailed scheduled main replacements

18 because it gave a higher priority to its internal

19 budgets.  According to the senior utility officer

20 appearing in this case, Integrys CFO Jamie Schott,

21 PGL plans to continue giving budgets that

22 priority.  Moreover, PGL has explicitly
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1 conditioned its commitment to AMRP on unspecified

2 earnings requirements making actual replacement of

3 the iron mains uncertain.

4                   PGL no longer considers itself

5 bound by the commitment to complete main

6 replacement on an accelerated schedule

7 specifically because Rider ICR was declared

8 unlawful by the Illinois Appellate Court.

9                   The utilities actual plans and

10 budgets continue AMRP only through 2013, it's test

11 year.  According to Mr. Schott, whether AMRP

12 projects continue in the future depends on PGL's

13 receipt of what he called, quote, appropriate and

14 timely, end quote, rate relief.

15                   Mr. Schott was unable to provide

16 any objective measure of that precondition and he

17 acknowledged that, in effect, utilities sees the

18 program being completed largely at its discretion.

19 On this point, the Commission must consider

20 carefully whether the clear need to replace old,

21 vulnerable pipes can be contingent on PGL's

22 opinion of its earnings or any subjective
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1 precondition.  CUB/City finds that an unacceptable

2 qualification on the statutory obligation to

3 maintain and operate plant in a safe manner and to

4 provided adequate and reliable service to its

5 customers.

6                   The Commission staff responded

7 to these facts and its own technical analysis by

8 recommending an 8-102 investigation.  In three

9 consecutive cases, the Commission has expressed

10 its own concerns about PGL's performance.  On this

11 record, the proposed order finds, quote, reasons

12 to question Peoples' ability to complete the

13 project in a timely and cost-effective manner, end

14 quote, noting that PGL's progress has been more

15 limited and more costly than projected.

16                   In PGL's 2011 rate case, the

17 Commission reduced the utilities proposed rate

18 base to recognize that even then PGL had fallen

19 behind the planned AMRP pace.  In approving PGL's

20 AMRP in 2009, the Commission concluded that the

21 very nature of the plan requires additional

22 oversight to ensure its successful completion in a



46

1 prudent and reasonable manner.  Moreover, the

2 Commission has acknowledged the city's warnings

3 about the coordination challenges PGL

4 characterizes as unexpected difficulties and

5 blames for its AMRP performance.

6                   Staff has segmented its

7 oversight proposal to require, first, an

8 assessment of the adequacy of PGL's past AMRP

9 performance; it's future AMRP plans and its

10 management and construction capabilities.

11 CUB/City supports such an investigation to inform

12 the Commission's determination of whether further

13 Commission oversight is needed.  Regardless of its

14 decision on staff's specific proposal, the

15 Commission must reaffirm in the clearest possible

16 terms that timely completion of PGL's AMRP remains

17 a Commission priority.  With many aging mains

18 needing replacement, PGL identifies the highest

19 risk using its main ranking index which is based

20 on the number of actual cracks, breaks and leaks

21 in active mains.

22                   According to Mr. Hayes'
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1 testimony, that index cannot always identify pipes

2 that present a public danger before they cause

3 harm nor does it assure this Commission that it

4 can prudently wait to see how main replacement

5 goes in years 150 through 160 of PGL's iron age

6 before it takes a closer look at the effort on

7 which so much depends.

8                   The seriousness of the

9 circumstance I've discussed, especially PGL's

10 unilateral subordination of systems safety and

11 service reliability to subjective budget and

12 earnings preconditions which remain undefined,

13 warrant a regulatory response.

14                   In our view, reaffirmation of

15 PGL's main replacement obligation without utility

16 preconditions and an independent second opinion of

17 its efforts are the minimum, prudent regulatory

18 responses.  Thank you.

19              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mr. Reddick, going

20 off the questions asked earlier, do you have any

21 concerns either in terms of the costs or the

22 timing and what that might do to the project to
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1 have the investigation?

2              MR. REDDICK:  I was attentive to

3 your questions to Mr. Feeley and the criticisms

4 that staff has leveled in its testimony are not

5 that Peoples is not digging the holes correctly or

6 is not using the right kind of pipe.  They are

7 management concerns, they are coordination

8 concerns and these are if I can draw a line

9 between pipes and paper these are paper concerns.

10 So I don't see that they will retard the

11 replacement of mains in the ground, but what it

12 will do is take a close look at the management

13 structure, the adequacy thereof and the actual

14 performance under that management structure of

15 what has happened to date.

16                   As to whether or not -- to

17 respond to Commissioner Colgan, whether or not an

18 investigation is supposed to create its own plan,

19 I don't -- as I recall staff's testimony, what the

20 investigation would do would be to come up with a

21 list of recommendations for how the process could

22 be made better.  It would then fall to the utility
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1 to accept those and implement.

2              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  And is it your

3 opinion that the recommendations that staff has

4 put in the record on what that investigation would

5 yield are sufficient to achieve the outcomes that

6 everybody wants here in terms of this on schedule

7 replacement program?

8              MR. REDDICK:  I believe staff's

9 delineation of the content of its investigation is

10 quite thorough.  I do have to say that our

11 position in the briefs has been that we support

12 the first phase of that investigation.  That is,

13 let's take a look and get a second opinion.  If

14 more is needed, the Commission can then decide to

15 do more and if Peoples is right that they've done

16 it well enough already, that would be the end of

17 it.  Ms. Hicks will now address the Legacy Cross

18 Bore Program.

19              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Ms. Hicks?

20              MS. HICKS:  Good morning, Chairman

21 and Commissioners.  My name is Christie Hicks and

22 I am also presenting on behalf of the Citizens
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1 Utility Board and the City of Chicago.  I'll be

2 speaking to you on the issue of the Legacy Sewer

3 Lateral Cross Bore Program.

4                   It is clearly improper to burden

5 ratepayers with the costs of this remediation

6 project to correct problems caused when the

7 utilities drilled through sewer main.  The

8 applicable standard here is prudence.  Not whether

9 it is prudent to correct the problems now, but

10 whether the utilities were prudent in their

11 construction so as to avoid the current problems.

12 The evidence demonstrates that they were not.

13                   First, a little background on

14 cross bores.  This issue arose because North Shore

15 and Peoples Gas installed natural gas pipes

16 underground using a technique called horizontal

17 directional drilling.  There are numerous utility

18 pipes underground; sewer, gas, electric and water,

19 and federal regulations require that utilities use

20 particular care when using horizontal directional

21 drilling to ensure that they do not bore, cross

22 boring, into another utilities piping.
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1                   The utilities began using

2 horizontal directional drilling in the 1990's.  In

3 1999, a special regulatory bulletin from the US

4 Department of Transportation's Pipeline Safety

5 Administration advised gas utilities to review

6 their procedures to account for the special

7 hazards associated with this directional drilling.

8                   The point here is that the

9 possibility of cross bores could and should have

10 been reasonably anticipated and avoided.  Having

11 operated in Chicago for more than a century, the

12 utilities should have been unsurprised by the

13 city's complex sewer system.

14                   Turning to staff's

15 recommendation, ICC Staff witness Mr. Burk, a

16 pipeline safety program manager for the

17 Commission, found that the utilities procedures to

18 avoid cross boring were either inadequate or were

19 not followed.  The proposed order's Commission

20 analysis and conclusions section provides no

21 acknowledgment, much less any analysis of

22 Mr. Burk's testimony about the adequacy of the
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1 construction practices that resulted in cross

2 bores.  That is not adequate for rejecting the

3 Commission's own witness' testimony.  Instead --

4              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Ms. Hicks?

5              MS. HICKS:  Yes.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Isn't a lot of the

7 costs that we're talking about here training and

8 the kinds of things that would be necessary to be

9 able to identify and to avoid additional problems

10 in the future?  I mean, and -- if so, how do we

11 account for those costs?  How should those be

12 accounted for?  It's just not to repair incidents

13 where something was struck.  I mean, there are

14 additional costs that are included here, aren't

15 there?

16              MS. HICKS:  The vast majority of the

17 cost is for actual construction.  The utilities

18 have said that in order to correct the cross bores

19 which they predict might affect three percent of

20 their system will require excavating approximately

21 25 percent of their system.  So these construction

22 costs are significant and could have been entirely
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1 avoided if the problem had not occurred in the

2 first place, if they had taken the appropriate

3 measures, following their own procedures or having

4 appropriate procedures to avoid cross bores all

5 together.

6                   The proposed order focuses on

7 the proposal to improve future procedures and to

8 correct the cross bores during AMRP work.  What

9 the order should focus on is whether the cross

10 bores and remediation costs are the result of

11 imprudence during the initial cross bore

12 construction.

13                   The Commission's analysis of

14 this issue should be similar to the analysis used

15 by the proposed order for the utilities Plastic

16 Pipe Fitting Remediation Project, or PPRP.  The

17 proposed order properly disallows costs associated

18 with the PPRP because they would not have been

19 incurred had Peoples done the work right the first

20 time.  A similar finding is appropriate here.

21                   The proposed order ignores the

22 appropriate applicable prudent standard and
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1 instead uses the term ratepayer benefit as the

2 standard.  Ratepayer benefit is not the standard

3 of recovery to fix utility mistakes and sufficient

4 program planning to remediate these programs which

5 could and should have been avoided does not change

6 that.

7                   The Commission should adopt the

8 disallowance proposed by staff to remove the costs

9 of the Legacy Sewer Lateral Cross Bore Program.

10 Thank you.

11              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you,

12 Ms. Hicks.  Next we'll hear from Timothy O'Brien

13 and Karen Lusson representing the Office of the

14 Attorney General.  Mr. O'Brien, Mr. Lusson, you'll

15 have 15 minutes.  Do you want to reserve any time?

16              MR. O'BRIEN:  Commissioner, just so

17 it's noted, my co-counsel Karen Lusson suffered a

18 minor injury.

19              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Oh, my goodness.

20              MR. O'BRIEN:  She is immobile so she

21 will not be available to appear today.

22              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  It's all on you.
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1              MR. O'BRIEN:  You get stuck with me

2 today.

3              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Would you like to

4 reserve any time, Mr. O'Brien?

5              MR. O'BRIEN:  Two minutes, please,

6 Chairman.

7              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Very good.  Thank

8 you.  Go ahead, sir.

9              MR. O'BRIEN:  Good morning, Chairman

10 Scott and Commissioners.  My name is Tim O'Brien.

11 I represent the People of the State of Illinois

12 and I will be talking about four issues today.

13                   First, the need for a formal

14 Commission investigation of the Peoples Gas AMRP.

15 Second, the Peoples alternative adjustment to

16 staff's recommended plant and service adjustment

17 related to AMRP.  Third, the proposed order's

18 failure to provide rationale for rejecting the

19 AG's reasonable recommendation to take certain tax

20 preparer deductions and, finally, our

21 recommendation that the Commission reduce the

22 company's operating expenses in response to the
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1 speculative and unjustified expenses proposed by

2 the companies for the cross bore project.

3                   It is beyond dispute that the

4 AMRP project is important to ensuring safe and

5 reliable delivery of a necessary service.

6 Mr. Reddick gave us a great overview of that just

7 a moment ago.  That is exactly why staff's

8 proposed Commission oversight is so important

9 here.  Absent Commission oversight, the history

10 associated with this project is doomed to be

11 repeated.  Quite simply, the company lacks a

12 detailed plan and budget for the operation and

13 completion of the AMRP.  As Mr. Buxton testified,

14 quote, there is no reliable evidence before the

15 Commission to allow it to determine how long

16 Peoples will take to complete its AMRP or what the

17 completed AMRP will cost.  Instead of recognizing

18 this important testimony, however, the proposed

19 order embraces a dangerous trend of kicking the

20 proverbial can down the road.

21                   As you heard this morning from

22 both staff and the city and CUB, the AMRP as it is
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1 currently run by the company is rife with cost

2 overruns, substantial delays, problems with

3 permits and coordination with the City of Chicago

4 and budget-related work stoppages.  In addition,

5 the People are also concerned that ratepayers not

6 be saddled with unnecessary project expenses.  The

7 proposed order does nothing to assuage these

8 concerns.  As noted on AG Oral Argument Exhibit 2,

9 and as Mr. Reddick and staff mentioned, the

10 Commission has been down this very road before.

11                   In Docket 09-0167, the

12 Commission expressed concerns about the prudent

13 and reasonable completion of AMRP and recommended,

14 quote, additional oversight in light of the nature

15 of the plan.

16                   Here we are several years later

17 and in this docket Commission staff concluded that

18 the Commission was not ready to begin the AMRP

19 when it made its filing in Docket 09-0167 and it

20 is staff's opinion that Peoples Gas is not ready

21 now.

22                   The company's own actions



58

1 exemplify staff's conclusion.  The company has

2 blamed delays on difficulties ordering materials.

3 It cuts costs by initiating new pilot programs.

4 It overspent by at least $12 million and in an

5 effort to reduce costs cancelled the very work

6 that it deemed critically important to safety.

7 Using the company's own words, it is spending more

8 yet at the same time accomplishing less.  The

9 company has more excuses than plans.  It blames

10 delays on coordination with the City of Chicago.

11 The company has been working within the City of

12 Chicago since its inception laying and replacing

13 mains in the city for about a century and a half

14 and working with the city on this very replacement

15 project for over three decades.

16                   How are these kinks not worked

17 out?  Safety aside, the project as it is being run

18 is not cost-effective.  The company increased its

19 project budget by some $20 million to reflect the

20 spending in 2012 and then in an effort to cost

21 control simply stopped working.

22                   In addition, the People also
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1 have concerns as to what the Commission should

2 consider as part of an investigation whether this

3 original 2030 completion date is either feasible,

4 cost-effective and whether that will be the safest

5 way in which to complete this project.

6              COMMISSIONER MAYE:  Counselor, we've

7 heard from both staff and CUB/City on their

8 opinions as to cost/work counter-productivity or

9 the potential of counter-productivity of such an

10 investigation.  Where does the AG stand on that?

11              MR. O'BRIEN:  The AG is in full

12 support of running this investigation and from our

13 perspective, we view any inefficiencies that can

14 be identified, and I'm going to borrow a bit of

15 Mr. Reddick's analogy, but any of the

16 inefficiencies on the management side of this

17 project will certainly create a long-term benefit

18 in the end.  So while there may be some initial

19 delays, and I hasten to use the word delays, but

20 there may be some initial extra time taken to

21 identify those efficiencies and identify a

22 stronger plan in order to avoid those
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1 inefficiencies in the future, in the end, the

2 company will have and the people and all the

3 ratepayers will have a workable plan in place

4 going forward.

5                   The proposed order unfortunately

6 as written does not hold the company accountable

7 for the company's lackluster performance,

8 unchecked spending and halted work.  Rather, the

9 proposed order simply admonishes the company to

10 shape up or face a potential investigation.  The

11 people urge the Commission to follow the

12 recommendation of Commission staff to exercise its

13 authority under Section 8-102 of the Public

14 Utilities Act and investigate AMRP in order to

15 ensure the continued safe, reliable and

16 cost-effective delivery of service.

17                   Unless there are other questions

18 about the investigation, I will now move onto the

19 AGL alternative adjustment to the company's

20 forecasted plan of service related --

21              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Mr. O'Brien, I

22 have a question for you.



61

1              MR. O'BRIEN:  Yes, Commissioner.

2              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  The overall --

3 I mean, we're talking -- you talked about the need

4 for an investigation and I've asked a couple of

5 other people whether or not staff's recommendation

6 for how that investigation should be conducted

7 would yield the outcome that we'd all hope that it

8 would.

9                   I'm also concerned that there

10 seems to be an overall bigger picture issue here

11 and because there is a lack of what some parties

12 are saying is a lack of a plan and a lack of a

13 budget for the cost we're left with not being able

14 to compare or actually figure out where we're at

15 in terms of this project unfolding.  I'm wondering

16 if there is -- and I haven't seen this, but I'm

17 wondering if in the record there is any evidence

18 that other cities have encountered similar kinds

19 of problems.  I'm picturing some sort of a

20 nightmare-ish underground matrix of pipes and

21 wires and tubes down there that are really hard to

22 navigate around and through, but it seems that
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1 other cities might have similar kinds of issues.

2                   Is there anything in the record,

3 has anybody taken a look to see what is going on

4 in other places so we can have some comparisons?

5              MR. O'BRIEN:  Commissioner, you

6 raise some very good concerns there and I think

7 from the People's perspective it would be great to

8 have some type of benchmark to see how other

9 cities would have addressed similar issues.

10                   As I stand here now, I am not

11 aware of anything in the record that points to how

12 another city dealt with some of these same issues.

13              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Are you aware

14 that there are these same issues in other cities?

15              MR. O'BRIEN:  I can certainly assume

16 that there are and, again, I don't want to assume

17 anything, but --

18              COMMISSIONER COLGAN:  Okay.  All

19 right.  That's enough.  Thanks.

20              MR. O'BRIEN:  And as I should note I

21 believe, Commissioner Colgan, as you started

22 speaking I just want to note for the record that
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1 the AG does support both phases of Mr. Buxton's

2 proposed investigation.

3                   I will now move onto the AG's

4 alternative adjustment to forecast plant and

5 service related to the forecasted construction

6 work in progress, otherwise known as CWIP.  CWIP

7 simply means those assets reported as construction

8 work in progress on a public utilities books.

9 Projects that are completed and placed in this

10 service cease, obviously, to be construction work

11 in progress and are generally placed into a

12 different account.  Plant and service.

13                   Under Section 9-214(e) of the

14 act, the Commission may include in rate base an

15 amount for CWIP for a utilities investment

16 scheduled to be placed in service within 12 months

17 of the effective date of the rate order.  In this

18 case, roughly June 2014.  The People's alternative

19 adjustment provides a reasonable alternative and

20 it reduces the amount of plant to be included in

21 the test year rate base by $51 million.  To reach

22 this number, AG witness Mr. Effron analyzed the
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1 company's actual month-to-month amounts of AMRP

2 plant being placed into service and averaged these

3 in order to account for the month-to-month

4 inherent fluctuations.  The proposed order

5 unfortunately misstates the record evidence and

6 misrepresents the People's proposal.

7                   As noted in AG Oral Argument

8 Exhibit 1, the proposed order wrongly states that

9 the AG is proposing a $4.6 million adjustment to

10 AMRP plant and CWIP.  That is simply wrong.

11                   Our proposal rather calls for a

12 reduction in forecasted plant and service

13 reduction of $51 million.  This $5 million

14 reflects, quote, excess CWIP that the proposed

15 order presumes without explanation will be used

16 and useful.  The AG's alternative proposal uses

17 the company's own data.  The company, however,

18 provided no showing that this excess $51 million

19 worth of $51 million AMRP CWIP would be completed

20 and used and useful and placed into service by

21 June 2014.

22                   In fact, the company's own
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1 evidence defeats any suggestion that this work

2 will be used and useful.  The company's witness

3 Mr. Hayes testified on surrebuttal, the last

4 opportunity that the company has to complete the

5 record here, that for new construction projects to

6 be awarded in 2013 the detailed schedule has not

7 yet been developed.  Given the company's failure

8 to present evidence to include an unprecedented

9 amount of CWIP and rate base, we urge the

10 Commission to revisit the proposed order's

11 conclusion and instead adopt the People's

12 well-reasoned alternative $51 million adjustment

13 to plant and service, which is, again, based on

14 the company's own historical data.

15                   If there are no questions based

16 on CWIP, I will very quickly address repairs

17 deductions.  As a very quick background, I'll

18 turn -- accumulated deferred income taxes,

19 otherwise known as ADIT's, quantify the income

20 taxes deferred by a utility when the tax law

21 provides for deductions for a certain item.  As

22 the Commission has noted in several previous
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1 orders, these ADIT's effectively represent

2 non-investor supplied funds available to the

3 company.

4                   The company in this case, in

5 their rebuttal case, abruptly changed its course

6 on its permitted repairs deductions and no longer

7 believed that certain AMRP costs qualified as

8 deductible tax repairs -- qualify as deductible

9 tax repairs that would reduce the rate base.  The

10 net effect is an unjustified $32 million increase

11 in the company's average test year rate base.  The

12 proposed order not only fails to directly address

13 these issues, but it offers little analysis or

14 support for its conclusions particularly the

15 finding that there is substantial uncertainty as

16 to the deductibility of these repairs.

17                   The company attempted to

18 rationalize this decision as painting it as

19 fiscally conservative, however, the company offers

20 little rationale or relevant evidence to somehow

21 establish these assumptions.  As explained in the

22 AG's briefs, the Commission should not be swayed
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1 by the company's arguments.  The company has the

2 burden of proving that it is no longer reasonable

3 to assume the deduction would be permitted by the

4 IRS.  The company failed in that burden and we

5 urge the Commission to reverse the proposed order

6 on this topic so that rates are not unnecessarily

7 inflated.

8                   Finally, as to cross bores, the

9 people recommended disallowing the expenses

10 associated with the Cross Bore Program that the

11 company presented for the first time in

12 supplemental direct testimony.  You heard about

13 the cross bore project this morning from Ms. Hicks

14 so I need not rehash that.

15                   What I will say is that the

16 People are troubled by the speculative nature of

17 the expenses associated with this project which

18 the companies simply did not justify.  The

19 companies have not demonstrated a commitment to

20 this program and have failed to demonstrate that

21 the expenses dedicated to the Cross Bore Program

22 could not have come from some other capital
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1 project.

2                   The People are, therefore,

3 troubled by the conclusions of the proposed order

4 on this issue which are unsupported by analysis or

5 record evidence.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Why would they have

7 to come from another -- or what -- I mean, it is

8 all going to end up coming from the same place

9 anyway.  If it comes from a different project,

10 what difference would that make?

11              MR. O'BRIEN:  I think, Chairman,

12 your question almost goes to our point, which is

13 to say why do we have to have dedicated money set

14 aside for this cross bore project when it couldn't

15 come from some other capital expenditure so --

16              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Doesn't it seem to

17 be fairly directly related to a maintenance

18 removal -- main removal program?

19              MR. O'BRIEN:  But our difficulty is

20 more that the company has not demonstrated a

21 commitment to starting this project or going

22 forward with this project and so the trouble is



69

1 why have ratepayers be on the hook for expenses

2 for a project that could be largely speculative

3 when the ratepayers will be paying for other

4 capital projects that there may already be a

5 demonstrated commitment to.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  I interrupted you

7 mid thought.  If you'd like to bring your last

8 remark to a close.

9              MR. O'BRIEN:  Please.  Just very

10 quickly.  The proposed order fails to address a

11 number of the People's arguments and the

12 ratepayers of Illinois should not be on the hook

13 for expenses associated with such a speculative

14 project and for these reasons the Commission

15 should adopt the People's adjustment on cross

16 bores.  Thank you.

17              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you,

18 Mr. O'Brien.  Ms. Scarsella, as I mentioned

19 earlier, I'll give you a couple of minutes to

20 rebut and I'll give everybody else one then.

21              MS. SCARSELLA:  I appreciate it.

22 Mr. Chairman and Commissioners, I don't know what
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1 else to say.  Half the work for twice the money.

2 That is just incorrect.  Peoples Gas has completed

3 a substantial amount of work and the budget for

4 the current year was only increased by $20 million

5 for 2012.  Staff's regard -- regarding staff's

6 recommendation for an investigation, Mr. Buxton's

7 testimony is replete with inaccuracies and facts

8 about how AMRP works and was structured.  Even

9 getting the year that it was started wrong.  He

10 claims that it started in 2009 when the plan was

11 not even formulated and submitted to the

12 Commission in surrebuttal testimony until August

13 of that year.

14                   Mr. Hayes, I won't go into

15 detail.  Mr. Hayes in his surrebuttal testimony

16 rebuts every point that Mr. Buxton makes even to

17 the various recommendations concerning this

18 investigation that he calls for including that

19 it's duplicative of the efforts of Mr. Burk in the

20 pipeline safety area who visits -- who has visited

21 once a month AMRP projects to investigate for two

22 to four days per month.  Examples of those reports
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1 are attached to Mr. Buxton -- attached to

2 Mr. Hayes' testimony.

3                   Furthermore, there is a budget.

4 There is a budget attached to Mr. Hayes' rebuttal

5 testimony that explains the variances between the

6 original 2012 budget and the revised budget and

7 explains each increase for what it was

8 attributable to.  As to an overall cost for the

9 project, Peoples Gas testified in surrebuttal

10 testimony that that is being currently updated and

11 it is not available yet.

12                   There is a 20-year plan and it

13 is based on the five-year rolling period.  The

14 five-year plan, these five-year rolling periods

15 are updated and reissued annually to keep it

16 current with system upgrades completed, new leaks,

17 there were maintenance activities completed or

18 required and to reforecast work for future years.

19                   The updates also take into

20 account any known external infrastructure plan

21 that we are -- that Peoples Gas is made aware of

22 by entities such as CDOT, the city water, sewer,
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1 electrical and other economic development

2 activities.  The rolling five-year plan provides a

3 visibility and transparency of the forecasted work

4 for AMRP.

5              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  You need to bring

6 it to a close.

7              MS. SCARSELLA:  I'm sorry.  There

8 was just so much to respond to there.

9              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Sure.

10              MS. SCARSELLA:  Briefly, the cross

11 bore program.  Ms. Hicks only gave you part of the

12 story.  The sewers are made of clay and do not

13 contain tracer wire so it's not easily detectable

14 with the aboveground techniques to find those

15 sewer lines.  Peoples Gas has projected it affects

16 700 miles of main for them and 800 miles for North

17 Shore.  Peoples Gas does have procedures in place.

18 They go out regularly and inspect locations and

19 train their employees.  The procedure -- this is

20 an industry-wide issue with utilities in

21 Minnesota, Nevada and Arizona already

22 investigating cross bores.
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1              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you,

2 Ms. Scarsella.

3              MS. SCARSELLA:  I'm sorry.  If I can

4 just say the repairs deduction, the IRS hasn't

5 even issued a guidance yet.  Peoples Gas has not

6 taken a deduction with regard to repairs in its

7 2010 return and it is not projected to take those

8 deductions in its 2011 return.

9              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

10              MS. SCARSELLA:  Thank you.

11              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mr. Feeley?

12              MR. FEELEY:  I'll be very brief.

13 You had a lot of questions about Mr. Buxton's

14 Section 8-102 investigation.  I just want to be

15 clear.  It's two phases.  The first phase is a

16 one-year investigation and the second phase is a

17 two-year verification period.  I think if you look

18 at his testimony you'll see that the company isn't

19 stopping the AMRP while this 8-102 investigation

20 is going on.

21                   It is investigating that while

22 that is taking place and it is looking to make the
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1 improvements where staff believes a lot of

2 improvement is needed.  That is all I have unless

3 you have any questions.

4              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you, sir.

5              MR. FEELEY:  Thank you.

6              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Mr. Reddick or

7 Ms. Hicks?

8              MS. HICKS:  I have just one quick

9 point to make in response to Ms. Scarsella.  She

10 stated that sewer lines are not easy detectable

11 aboveground.  That is not new information to the

12 companies.  They have known that since they began

13 horizontal directional drilling.  They could and

14 should have anticipated that and they should have

15 had procedures and followed those procedures that

16 would ensure that when conducting horizontal

17 directional drilling they took that into account

18 and identified the sewer lines by other means.

19 Thank you.

20              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you.

21 Mr. O'Brien?

22              MR. O'BRIEN:  Thank you, Chairman.
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1 I just have a couple of brief things to address.

2 First, Mr. -- sorry.  Ms. Scarsella addresses the

3 presence of this budget.  She calls it a 20-year

4 plan with a five-year rolling plan.  However,

5 there is no evidence in the record of cost or

6 budget controls and I think one of the things the

7 investigation will establish is a specific budget

8 to determine whether these costs are, in fact,

9 prudent.

10                   An investigation would be able

11 to revisit the 2030 date to determine whether or

12 not that is still something that's effective.  As

13 to the repairs deduction, Ms. Scarsella mentioned

14 the IRS guidance and the lack of IRS guidance on

15 that.

16                   In fact, there is IRS guidance

17 applicable to electric utilities on this very

18 subject and up until the rebuttal phase of this

19 case I believe the company had referenced that

20 very guidance.

21                   The People's witness, the AG

22 witness that reviewed the IRS guidance itself, did
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1 not find any reason why this would not be a

2 reasonable assumption to accept in the absence of

3 specific and natural gas guidance except the

4 electric utilities guidance on this docket.

5              CHAIRMAN SCOTT:  Thank you, sir.

6 That will conclude today's oral argument.  On

7 behalf of the Commission, I thank the parties for

8 their presentation today.  I know it takes a lot

9 of time to prepare and to anticipate our

10 questions.  We certainly appreciate it.  This

11 meeting stands adjourned.  Thank you, everyone.
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